
 
 

Persons with disabilities requiring reasonable accommodation to participate in this meeting should 
contact the park district’s ADA Compliance Officer, Michael Benard, at the park district’s Administrative 
Office, 102 E. Wesley Street, Wheaton, IL Monday through Friday from 8:30 am until 4:30 pm at least 48 
hours prior to the meeting.  Requests for a qualified ASL interpreter require five (5) working days 
advance notice.  Telephone number 630.510-4944; fax number 630.665.5880; email 
dsiciliano@wheatonparks.org 

 Page 1 
 

 
PUBLIC NOTICE - Wheaton Park District Board of Commissioners Regular Meeting 

Wednesday December 10, 2014 7:00 p.m. 
City of Wheaton Council Chambers 303 W. Wesley Street Wheaton, Illinois 

 
 
December 8, 2014  
Public notice is hereby given that the Board of Park Commissioners of the Wheaton Park 
District, DuPage County, Illinois (the “Park Board”) will hold a meeting at 7 pm on Wednesday, 
December 10, 2014.  The meeting will take place at Wheaton City Hall, 303 W. Wesley, 
Wheaton, IL.  Please contact Michael J. Benard, Board Secretary, for further information. 
mbenard@wheatonparks.org 
 
Michael J. Benard 
Secretary 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

mailto:dsiciliano@wheatonparks.org
mailto:mbenard@wheatonparks.org


 
 

Persons with disabilities requiring reasonable accommodation to participate in this meeting should 
contact the park district’s ADA Compliance Officer, Michael Benard, at the park district’s Administrative 
Office, 102 E. Wesley Street, Wheaton, IL Monday through Friday from 8:30 am until 4:30 pm at least 48 
hours prior to the meeting.  Requests for a qualified ASL interpreter require five (5) working days 
advance notice.  Telephone number 630.510-4944; fax number 630.665.5880; email 
dsiciliano@wheatonparks.org 

 Page 2 
 

Agenda for the November 19, 2014 Meeting  
Board of Park Commissioners Wheaton Park District  

 
 
CALL TO ORDER  
 
PRESENTATIONS  
 
COMMUNITY INPUT 
Public comments are important to the Board.  However, it is the Board’s policy not to take action 
on items until time has been taken to gather information and discuss all options.  Lack of action 
does not imply lack of interest in the issues.  During the community input portion of the agenda 
the board typically will ask residents to provide input prior to accepting input from non- 
residents. 
 
CONSENT AGENDA  
Consent Agenda items are considered by the Park District to be routine and will be enacted in 
one motion.  There will be no separate discussion on these items.  If a member of the Park Board 
requests, a Consent Agenda item will be removed from the Consent Agenda and considered as an 
individual item at the end of old or new business. 
 

1. Approval of the Disbursements totaling 1,006,742.22 for the period beginning                  
November 12, 2014 and ending November 29, 2014.  

2. Approval of the November 3, 2014 Finance Sub Committee Minutes 
3. Approval of the November 17, 2014 Finance Sub Committee Minutes 
4. Approval of November 19, 2014 Regular Board Meeting Minutes  
5. Approval of November 19, 2014 Budget and Appropriation Hearing Minutes  
6. Approval of the December 3, 2014 Finance Sub Committee Minutes  
7. Purchases & Contracts over 10K and under 20K 

a. Pro Shop Purchases during PGA show - advance approval of up to $12,000 with 
Titleist and up to $12,000 with Calaway for ProShop Stock 2015 – advance 
approval required for staff to make use of show discounts 

b. Beverage Cart Purchase during PGA show - advance approval of up to $15,000  - 
- advance approval required for staff to make use of show discounts 

 
8. Designation of Michael Benard to serve as a Delegate to the Annual Business Meeting of 

the Illinois Association of Park Districts to be held at the Hyatt Regency Hotel Chicago 
Saturday January 24, 2015 3:30 pm 

mailto:dsiciliano@wheatonparks.org


 
 

Persons with disabilities requiring reasonable accommodation to participate in this meeting should 
contact the park district’s ADA Compliance Officer, Michael Benard, at the park district’s Administrative 
Office, 102 E. Wesley Street, Wheaton, IL Monday through Friday from 8:30 am until 4:30 pm at least 48 
hours prior to the meeting.  Requests for a qualified ASL interpreter require five (5) working days 
advance notice.  Telephone number 630.510-4944; fax number 630.665.5880; email 
dsiciliano@wheatonparks.org 

 Page 3 
 

 
 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

1. Change Order AHGC Driving Range  - $8,000 in additional asphalt work 
2. Change Order Gateway Garden Project - Credit $1,266  

NEW BUSINESS 
1. Ordinance 2014 -10   

AN ORDINANCE ADOPTING A COMBINED BUDGET AND APPROPRIATING 
SUCH SUMS OF MONEY AS MAY BE DEEMED NECESSARY TO DEFRAY ALL 
NECESSARY EXPENSES AND LIABILITIES OF THE WHEATON PARK 
DISTRICT, DUPAGE COUNTY, ILLINOIS FOR THE FISCAL YEAR BEGINNING 
JANUARY 1, 2015 AND ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2015 AND SPECIFYING THE 
OBJECTS AND PURPOSES FOR WHICH SUCH APPROPRIATIONS ARE MADE, 
AND THE AMOUNT APPROPRIATED FOR EACH OBJECT AND PURPOSE. 
 
Net Expenses $37,686,493 Budgeted & $45,223,791 Appropriated 
 

2. Ordinance 2014 - 11 Levy 2014 
Summary of Levies  
General Corporate Levy                3,864,431 
Recreation Program Levy   3,817,540 
IMRF            742,539 
FICA             474,692 
Insurance            602,318 
Audit            1,000 
Special Recreation Association     815,507 
Museum        854,745 
Debt Service     4,358,269 

                             Total 15,531,041 
 

3. Ordinance 2014 - 12 Abatement 2014 
Ordinance abating the tax hereto levied for the year 2014 to pay the principal of and 
interest on $9,000,000 Taxable General Obligation Park Bonds (Alternate Revenue 
Source), Series 2010, of the Wheaton Park District, DuPage County, Illinois. 
 

4. Agreement with Pepsi Beverages Company Effective February 1, 2015 through 
January 31, 2018 

5. Commissioner Attendance – IPRA/IAPD Conference and Exposition in January 
2015. A maximum cost to the district of $898.19 per commissioner attending. 

                                                                                                                                            

mailto:dsiciliano@wheatonparks.org


 
 

Persons with disabilities requiring reasonable accommodation to participate in this meeting should 
contact the park district’s ADA Compliance Officer, Michael Benard, at the park district’s Administrative 
Office, 102 E. Wesley Street, Wheaton, IL Monday through Friday from 8:30 am until 4:30 pm at least 48 
hours prior to the meeting.  Requests for a qualified ASL interpreter require five (5) working days 
advance notice.  Telephone number 630.510-4944; fax number 630.665.5880; email 
dsiciliano@wheatonparks.org 

 Page 4 
 

 
REPORTS FROM STAFF 

 Annual Report 2014 Summer Camps 
 Annual Report 2014 Special Events 
 Executive Director  

o 2013Tax Levy Objections Narrative from State’s Attorney 
o Follow up from Tressler regarding Bid Question from Previous Month 

 Department Reports  
 
BOARD SUBCOMMITTEE REPORTS / DISCUSSION 
 
CLOSED SESSION   

a. Appointment, Employment, Compensation, Discipline, Performance, or Dismissal of 
Specific Employees, 5ILCS 120/2 (c) (1) 

b. Purchase or Lease of Real Property, 5ILCS 120/2 (c) (5)    
c. Setting of Price for Sale or Lease of Property Owned by the Public Body, 5ILCS 120/2 

(c) (6)  
d. Pending, probable or imminent litigation, 5ILCS 120/ 2 (c) (11)  
e. Approval, Review and Release of Closed Session Minutes, 5ILCS 120/2 (c) (21) 

 
POSSIBLE ACTION ON ITEMS DISCUSSED IN CLOSED SESSION 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
 

mailto:dsiciliano@wheatonparks.org
















































































Finance Subcommittee Meeting 
Wheaton Park District Board of Commissioners 

Monday November 17, 2014 
Dupage County Historical Museum 
102 E. Wesley Street, Wheaton, IL 

 

CALL TO ORDER –President Kelly called the Finance Subcommittee meeting to order at 4:04 
p.m.  Commissioners Hodgkinson and Morrill were present. 

Commissioners Luetkehans, Mee, Schobel and VanderSchaaf were absent. 

In attendance: Executive Director Benard, Executive Assistant Siciliano, Finance Director 
Trainor, Assistant Finance Director Chiappetta, Great Lakes Advisor Bill Gregg, and Vice 
President of Wintrust Government Funds Amy Briles.  

Discussion Items 

Bill Gregg from Great Lakes Advisors informed the Board about what Great Lakes Advisors can 
do for the Wheaton Park District.  They would set up an account just for the District, and buy 
securities that are 100% transparent not only to the District but to the tax payers as well.  They 
do not do anything with repo’s because the treasury rates are low therefore the repo market is 
dead. If the repo market comes back he would talk to the District further.  Their investments 
would include the following: 

 CD’s below the $250,000 FDIC limit.  They buy CD’s on platforms in denominations of 
$10,000, $20,000 etc.   

 Treasuries and Agency’s to give liquidity for debt services and operating needs.   
 Agency mortgages (Fannie and Freddie) 
 Short municipals, rated in the top 4 highest quality ratings.  They usually don’t go out 

more than one and a half years. 

They would want to target the Barclay’s Government 1-3 year Index. 

They provide a deep bench to analyze this portfolio, and will attend quarterly board meetings to 
explain how our portfolio is performing.   

President Kelly asked if we would be able to pick the percentages we would like our money 
invested in.  Bill explained that the portfolio is set up to include 40% in mortgages, 30% in 
treasuries and agencies and 30% in CD’s and municipal bonds. 

President Kelly asked how much they charge.  Bill replied they assess an 18 basis point fee on a 
quarterly basis.  They could do monthly but staff recommended quarterly.  The 18 points are 
based on the 0 to $25,000,000,000 investment range, above $25,000,000,000 brings it down to 
15 basis points.  President Kelly asked what he expects our return to be.  Bill stated that he 
expected to return us a net 70 basis points. 



President Kelly asked Bill what other municipalities they do work for.  Bill stated they manage 
funds for ten municipalities, including $320,000,000 with the DuPage County Forest Preserve 
District.   

President Kelly stated that he will probably recommend to the Board that we go in a little at a 
time with Great Lakes and not do it all right away.   

Bill stated that they can give up to 15 times the FDIC $250K insurance limit through their 
MAXSAVE product. This is because Wintrust set up that many different banks incorporated in 
Illinois, each of the banks can take advantage of the $250K of FDIC insurance.   

President Kelly asked if Great Lakes would be able to catch fraud quickly unlike IMET.  Bill 
stated that they analyze the collateral with their systems because of how they pay.  The only 
credit risk we would have is in the municipal bonds since they are not FDIC insured.  If there 
was fraud, Great Lakes is the fiduciary therefore Wintrust would be responsible.  He also stated 
that everything they invest in has a Moody’s or S&P rating of AA- or above. 

Executive Director Benard asked who the fiduciary is for the Illinois Funds.  Finance Director 
Trainor wasn’t sure but will find out. 

President Kelly wants to check on the basis point rates that his company is paying, and to see 
how it’s broken down.  He wants to make sure that we are invested in the safest things possible 
and would be willing to give up some return for safety. 

The subcommittee along with staff agreed to move the money out of IMET and into Illinois 
Funds tomorrow morning.  

President Kelly wasn’t sure that he wants to act on the resolution, agreement or s with Chicago 
Trust. John  thought that we can have Great Lakes do a presentation at the December meeting 
and give the Board more information and can vote on it at the January meeting.  Finance Director 
Trainor will give a small presentation and then let Bill give his presentation at the board meeting 
on Wednesday.   

Commissioner Hodgkinson recommended that staff send the Board the old investment policy. 

President Kelly stated that if the Board decides they want to go with Great Lakes we will have 
Tressler review the documents. 

Commissioner Hodgkinson asked if we are looking at other investment firms. Finance Director 
Trainor stated we were not that Great Lakes come highly recommended by Wheaton Bank whom 
we have a solid relationship with. 

At 5:07 pm. Commissioner Morrill moved to adjourn the Finance Subcommittee Meeting.  
Seconded by Commissioner Hodgkinson.  Motion passed by voice vote. 
 



 
 

MINUTES – BUDGET AND APPROPRIATION HEARING  

Wheaton Park District Board of Commissioners 
Wednesday, November 19, 2014 7:00 p.m. 

City of Wheaton Council Chambers 
303 W. Wesley Street Wheaton, Illinois 

 

CALL TO ORDER  

President Kelly called the November 19, 2014; 2015 Budget and Appropriation meeting of the Wheaton 

Park District Board of Commissioners to order at 7:00 p.m. 

 

Roll call was taken and the following Commissioners were present:   

 Hodgkinson, Mee, Morrill, VanderSchaaf, Kelly 

 

Commissioner  Luetkehans and Schobel were absent 

 

COMMISSIONER COMMENT 

None 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT 

None 

 

ADJOURNMENT OR RECESS OF PUBLIC HEARING  

At 7:01 p.m. Commissioner Mee moved to adjourn the Public Hearing on the 2015 Budget and 

Appropriation.  Commissioner Hodgkinson seconded.  

 

Motion passed by roll call vote. 

Ayes:  Hodgkinson, Mee, Morrill, VanderSchaaf, Kelly 

Nays: None 

Absent:  Luetkehans, Schobel 

 

 

Respectfully Submitted 

 

Michael Benard, Secretary 

 



Page 1 
 

 
Wheaton Park District Board of Commissioners Meeting  

Wednesday November 19, 2014 7:00 p.m. 
City of Wheaton Council Chambers 

303 W. Wesley Street Wheaton, Illinois  
 
CALL TO ORDER –President Kelly called the meeting to order at 7:02 p.m.  Commissioners 
Hodgkinson Mee, Morrill, VanderSchaaf and were present. 
 
Absent:  Commissioner Luetkehans and Schobel, 
 
PRESENTATIONS  

 Lions Club - Reindeer Run Partnership Event with Wheaton Park District 
 Nicole Kapala Marketing and Event Coordinator invited everyone to come out for our 
 second annual  Reindeer Run on Saturday December 6th.  This holiday-themed CARA 
 certified 5K is  perfect for the serious and casual runner looking to get into the holiday 
 spirit! Wheaton Lions Club Charities are proud to support the Ronald McDonald House® 
 near Central DuPage Hospital. A portion of the proceeds from the 2014 Reindeer Run 
 will be donated to this cause and also the DuPage County Historical Museum.  

 Eagle Scout Award and Project Recognition - Samuel S. Bedrossian Troop 23 
 Samuel S. Bedrossian will be recognized at the December meeting.  
 
COMMUNITY INPUT 
 None  
CONSENT AGENDA  
 

A. Approval of the Disbursements totaling 1,894,322.10 for the period beginning September 
30, 2014 and ending November 11, 2014.  

B. Approval of Previous Minutes 
1.  October 8, 2014 Regular Meeting Minutes  
2. Approval of October 8, 2014 Public Hearing Minutes  
3. Approval of the October 4, 2014 Budget Workshop Meeting Minutes 

C. Approval of Purchases and Contractual Services over $10,000 and under $19,999. 
1. Cosley Zoo Fox Exhibit Fence Installation  - Classic Fence $17,156.00 
2. Community Center Boiler Replacement Engineering – Berg Engineering $14,400. 
3. Cosley Zoo Carnival Ride Operator Payment – JBR Funways $19,105.31 

D. Approval of Wheaton Park District Board of Commissioners 2015 Meeting Schedule 
 

Commissioner Mee moved to approve the Consent Agenda with Item C3 removed.  
Commissioner Morrill seconded.  Motion passed by voice vote.  
 
Later in the meeting President Kelly explained that the $19,105.31 that we are paying to 
JBR Funways is for the temporary carnival rides that were set up at Cosley Zoo.  The 
park district entered into a 75-25% split agreement with JBR.  Tickets for the rides were 
sold at the entrance gate by WPD employees.  The $19,105.31 is being paid back to JBR 



Page 2 
 

from the money that was already collected at the gate.  JBR Funways is the same carnival 
company that we use for the Taste of Wheaton. 
 
Commissioner Mee moved to approve consent agenda item C3.  Seconded by 
Commissioner Morrill.  Motion passed by voice vote. 
 

 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 

1. Change Order – Cosley and Prairie Permeable Paver Parking Lots Project 
 Commissioner Mee moved to approve the Cosley and Prairie change orders as 
 presented.  Seconded by Commissioner Morrill.  Motion passed by voice vote.  
 

President Kelly explained that this is a credit change order as less unsuitable soil was 
found on this project than anticipated. 

 
 

2. Change Order – Arrowhead Asphalt Path Replacement Project  
 Commissioner Mee moved to approve authorizing the Buildings and Grounds 
 Subcommittee to settle this change order equitably for the park district.  Seconded by 
 Commissioner Hodgkinson.  Motion passed by voice vote. 
 
 President Kelly stated that the Buildings and Grounds Subcommittee just saw this change 
 order yesterday.  He would like to opportunity to meet with the engineer on site.  
 Anything over the $50,000 that was budgeted for this project will come out of the 2015 
 Arrowhead path budget. 
 
 
NEW BUSINESS 

1. Resolution 2014-07 authorizing the completion and filing of a self-reporting 
questionnaire under the Municipalities Continuing Disclosure Cooperation 
Initiative of the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission and the adoption of a 
Disclosure Compliance Policy. 
Commissioner Mee moved to approve Resolution 2014-07 authorizing the completion 
and filing of a self-reporting questionnaire under the Municipalities Continuing 
Disclosure Cooperation Initiative of the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission and 
the adoption of a Disclosure Compliance Policy. 

 Seconded by Commissioner Morrill.   
 

Lynda Given, Bond Counsel from Chapman and Cutler explained to the Board that via 
our 2013 rollover bond underwriter’s disclosure process, it was noticed that the park 
district had several non-material lapses in its own disclosures. The lapses were related to 
the timing of filing the park district’s annual financial audits with the SEC’s designated 
repository.   The Resolution provides board approval for Chapman and Cutler to file a 
completed disclosure questionnaire with the SEC by the deadline of December 1st, 2014 
on behalf of the park district. It was noted that the district engaged Chapman and Cutler 
to prepare the questionnaires as well.  Commissioner VanderSchaaf asked if there is any 
additional risk to the district.  Dave Philips from Speer Financial stated there was not.  
Commissioner Hodgkinson stated that this appeared to be a minor issue.    



Page 3 
 

  
 

Motion passed by roll call vote. 
 Ayes: Hodgkinson, Mee, Morrill, VanderSchaaf, Kelly 
 Nays:  None 
 Absent: Luetkehans, Schobel 

 
 

2. Bid Results and Recommendation – General Obligation Limited Tax Park Bonds, 
Series 2014  
Commissioner Mee moved to approve the bid from Wheaton Bank and Trust, Wheaton 
Illinois, which was a net interest rate of .89% for 1,447,145.00 General Obligation 
Limited Tax Park Bonds, Series 2014  
 
Seconded by Commissioner Hodgkinson.   

 
Motion passed by roll call vote.  
Ayes: Hodgkinson, Mee, Morrill, Kelly 
Nays:  VanderSchaaf 
Absent:  Luetkehans, Schobel  

 
3. Ordinance 2014-09 providing for the issue of $1,447.145 General Obligation Limited 

Tax Park Bonds, Series 2014, of the Wheaton Park District, DuPage County, 
Illinois, for the payment of land for parks, for the building, maintaining, improving 
and protecting of the same and the existing land and facilities of said Park District 
and for the payment of outstanding obligations of said District, and providing for 
the levy of a direct annual tax to pay the principal and interest on said bonds. 
Commissioner Morrill moved to approve Ordinance 2014-09 providing for the issue of 
$1,447.145 General Obligation Limited Tax Park Bonds, Series 2014, of the Wheaton 
Park District, DuPage County, Illinois, for the payment of land for parks, for the building, 
maintaining, improving and protecting of the same and the existing land and facilities of 
said Park District and for the payment of outstanding obligations of said District, and 
providing for the levy of a direct annual tax to pay the principal and interest on said 
bonds.  Seconded by Commissioner Mee.   
 
Commissioner VanderSchaaf stated that she doesn’t think we should be filling our debt 
service extension base every year.  Commissioner Mee thought it was important that the 
park district have sufficient funds to do the projects we need to do and maintain district 
property and assets.  He thought by not doing this we could be significantly handicapped 
in the future.  President Kelly reminded the Board the in 2015, the 2005 debt is callable 
for refinance and while he is in favor of filling the DSEB this year, but will want the 
district to re assess the use of debt.  
 
Motion passed by roll call vote. 
Ayes: Hodgkinson, Mee, Morrill, Kelly  
Nays:  VanderSchaaf 
Absent:  Luetkehans, Schobel 

 
 



Page 4 
 

 
 

4. Bid Results and Recommendation – Golf Course Chemical Purchases for 2015  
Commissioner Mee moved to approve the following Golf Course Chemical purchases for 
2015.  Seconded by Commissioner Hodgkinson. 
Arthur Clesen Inc. of Lincolnshire, IL for: Briskway in the amount of $5,160 per case, 
Clipper in the amount of $557.20 per case, Concert in the amount of $380 per case 
From BTSI of Frankfort, IL for: Iprodione in the amount of $187.50 per case 
From Chicagoland Turf of Downers Grove, IL for Secure in the amount of $2,825 per 
case, Acelepryn in the amount of $3,710 per case, Barricade Herbicide in the amount of 
$1,370 per case, Daconil Ultrex WD in the amount of $170 per case, Headway Link Pack 
in the amount of $4,060 per pack, Insignia SC Intrinsic in the amount of $5,884.40 per 
case, Emerald in the amount of $1,450.40 per case, Tourney Fungicide in the amount of 
$2,690 per case, Interface in the amount of $772.50 per case, Ace Wetting Agent in the 
amount of $333.88 per case, Interface Triton Muti-Pack in the amount of $2,600 per unit, 
Honor Intrinsic in the amount of $2,412 per case, Plant Food 6 Iron in the amount of $76 
per case,  Defendor in the amount of $1,195.30 per case,  Mainsail WDG in the amount 
of $101 per case, TV 23 in the amount of $67.24 per case, Xzemplar in the amount of 
$3,052.92 per case, Banner/Primo/Heritage Pack in the amount of $4,200 per unit, 
Primo/Headway/Daconil/Banner Pack in the amount of $10,700 per unit, Lexicon 
Intrinsic in the amount of $1689.24 per case, Mirage StressGar Interface Bayleton Pack 
in the amount of $11,500 per unit, Curlan EG Lexicon Intrinsic Utility Pack in the 
amount of $5,551.44 per unit, TV Base in the amount of $267.32 per case, TV Siphon in 
the amount of $243.34 per case 
Pendelton Turf Supply of Waterford, WI for Trinexapac-ethyl in the amount of $235 per 
case, Chlorthalonil DF in the amount of $86 per case, Quali-Pro Myclobutanil 20EW in 
the amount of $250 per case 
From ProGro of Illinois, LLC of Mendota, IL for Curlan EG in the amount of $941 per 
drum, ArmourTech 44 in the amount of $247.50 per case, Shaws 40-0-0 w/Acelepryn 
.067% plus Dimension .253% in the amount of $91.48 per bag, Shaws 40-0-0 
w/Acelepryn .067% plus Dimension .13% in the amount of $86.24 per bag, Shaws 36-0-6 
RG w/Acelepryn .067% plus Dimension .167% in the amount of $86.51 per bag, 
Dehydrated Gypsum in the amount of $285 per ton 

 
 Motion passed by roll call vote 
 

Ayes:  Hodgkinson, Mee, Morrill,VanderSchaaf, Kelly 
Nays:  None 
Absent:  Luetkehans, Schobel 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 5 
 

 
5. Bid Results and Recommendation – Baseball & Softball Uniforms and Equipment 

Purchases for 2015 Season 
Commissioner Mee moved to approve the following Baseball & Softball Uniforms and 
Equipment purchases for the 2015 season subject to attorney review of the district’s 
options related to a single bid error by Anaconda for Baseball Pants.  Seconded by 
Commissioner Morrill.  
 

  
 Santo Sports: Baseballs- Rawlings RLLB1 in the amount of $32.90 per doz., Rawlings 
 RPLB in the amount of $44.65 per doz.  Softballs:  Worth (NSA) C11NYL in the amount 
 of $53.20 per doz., Worth (NSA) C12NYL in the amount of $53.20 per doz., Easton 
 Incrediball 11” A122608 Soft-Stitch in the amount of $44.80 per doz., Easton Incrediball 
 11” A122604 Soft-Touch in the amount of $44.80 per doz., Easton Indrediball 9” Soft 
 Touch in the amount of $34.80 per doz.  Hats/Visors:  Adult MLB-300 in the amount of 
 $55.78 per doz., Youth MLB 300 in the amount of $55.78 per doz. Pants: Wilson WTC 
 7609 Women in the amount of $202.18 per doz., Wilson WTA 4374 Adult in the amount 
 of $105.24 per doz., Wilson WTA 4204 Youth in the amount of $67.20 per doz., 
 Rawlings BEP31 in the amount of $108.96 per doz.,Rawlings BEP31 in the amount of 
 $108.96 per doz., Rawlings YBEP31 in the amount of $77.76 per doz., Jerseys/Belts: 
 186Y Youth Replica in the amount of $195.60 per doz., 1922 Adult Replica in the 
 amount of $116.72 per doz. 
 Kirhofer’s:  Baseballs: Rawlings RLLB in the amount of $45.69 per doz.  Hats/Visors:  
 Adult with embroidered brush script W AW – 453 in the amount of $73.90 per doz.  
 Pants:  High Five 14oz. belt loop pro style low rise style 15052  in the amount of $168 
 per doz., High Five 14 oz. belt loop pro Style low rise style 15053 in the amount of $154 
 per doz.  Jerseys /Belts:  Archer Jerseys Y1264 in the amount of $224.95 per doz., Archer 
 Jerseys W1244 in the amount of $239.92 per doz., Adams Bolco style #26 1 ½ inch belts 
 in the amount of $26.50 per doz. 
 Anaconda Sports:  Hats/Visors: Visor PCTV 100 with embroidered brush script W in the 
 amount of $57.60 per doz., Youth PCTV – 100 with embroidered brush script in the 
 amount of $57.60 per doz., Visor Adult MLB 175 in the amount of $58.32 per doz. 
 BSN:  Socks:  OBR in the amount of $26.99 per doz., OBK in the amount of $26.99 per 
 doz.  Jerseys/Belts:  A186 Adult Replica in the amount of $215.64 per doz., 1928 Youth 
 Replica in the amount of $105.48 per doz. 
 MISCELLANEOUS ITEMS Additional miscellaneous supplies will be purchased 
 including helmets, baseball bats, belts, chest protectors, leg guards, batting T’s, bases, 
 scorebooks, bat bags, equipment bags, rulebooks, etc.  Staff will purchase these supplies 
 from the retailer providing the best price, and will be split between several companies. 
 

President Kelly noticed that the pants bid item was not going to the lowest bidder.  Staff 
looked into it and found that the vendor Anaconda made an error on their bid.  After 
some discussion it was decided that legal counsel would be consulted on the matter of the 
error. 

 
 Motion passed by roll call vote 
 Ayes:  Hodgkinson, Mee, Morrill, VanderSchaaf, Kelly 
 Nays:  None 
 Absent:  Luetkehans, Schobel 



Page 6 
 

 
6. Resolution 2014-08 – Amendment to the Cafeteria Section 125 Plan for the Wheaton 
 Park District  
 Raises maximum annual salary reduction allowed by employees to a Flexible Spending 
 Account from $2,500 to $2,550 for 2015 forward. 
 

Commissioner Morrill moved to approve Resolution 2014-08 – Amendment to the 
Cafeteria Section 125 Plan for the Wheaton Park District that Raises maximum annual 
salary reduction allowed by employees to a Flexible Spending Account from $2,500 to 
$2,550 for 2015 forward.  Seconded by Commissioner Mee. 
 
Commissioner Hodgkinson recalled we were going to amend this motion last year to 
raise it to the statutory limit each year so that we didn’t have to do this every year.  
Executive Director Benard stated that she was correct that the resolution was written 
correctly, that only the motion was incorrect.   
 
Commissioner Morrill amended his motion to reflect a maximum annual salary reduction 
allowed by employees to a Flexible Spending Account to the statutory limit.  Seconded 
by Commissioner Mee. 
 
Motion passed by voice vote. 

  
7. Approval to Fill Vacant Full Time Trim Crew Leader Position – Parks and 
 Planning Dept.   
 Commissioner Mee moved to approve the vacant full time Trim Crew Leader 
 position.  Seconded by Commissioner Morrill.  Motion passed by voice vote. 
 
 No discussion. 
 
8. Approval to Fill Vacant Full Time Community Center Evening Custodial Crew 
 Leader Position – Parks and Planning Dept.   
 Commissioner Mee moved to approve filling the vacant full time Community Center 
 Evening Custodial Crew Leader position.  Seconded by Commissioner Morrill.  Motion 
 passed by voice vote.  
 
 No discussion. 
 
9. Approval to Fill Vacant Full Time Arrowhead Restaurant Manager Position – 
 Special Facilities Dept. 
 Commissioner Morrill moved to approve filling the Full Time Arrowhead  Restaurant 
 Manager Position.  Seconded by Commissioner Mee.  Motion passed by voice vote. 
 
 No discussion 
 
10.  Approval to Fill Vacant Full Time DuPage County Museum Curator Position –  
  Special Facilities Dept 

Commissioner Morrill moved to approve filling the vacant Full Time DuPage County 
Museum Curator Position.  Seconded by Commissioner Hodgkison.  Motion passed by 
voice vote. 



Page 7 
 

 
 Commissioner VanderSchaaf stated that per our IGA with the County we are required to 
 fill this position. 
 
 
11. Approval of an Intergovernmental Agreement Regarding Silverwood Glen Park 
 Between Winfield Park District and Wheaton Park District 

Commissioner Mee moved to approve the Intergovernmental Agreement Regarding 
Silverwood Glen Park Between Winfield Park District and Wheaton Park District.  
Seconded by Commissioner Morrill. 

 
President Kelly stated that the $25,000 we will be receiving from the Winfield Park 
District will be in the form of a donation to the Sensory Garden Playground.  President 
Kelly was a little concerned that the project would go over budget and we wouldn’t get 
paid.   Director of Planning stated that before we start ordering equipment we’ll make 
sure to stay within that budget.  He also stated that it is in the IGA that both the Winfield 
and Wheaton Park District boards must approve the budget and plans before moving 
forward.  Executive Director Benard stated that both park districts will have signage at 
the park. 
 
Motion passed by roll call vote.  

 Ayes:  Hodgkinson, Mee, Morrill, VanderSchaaf, Kelly 
 Nays:  None 
 Absent: Luetkehans, Schobel 

 
12. Approval of Second Amendment to an Intergovernmental Agreement Between  
  County of DuPage and Wheaton Park District for improvements to the Illinois Prairie  
  Path-National Louis University Site and Lease of Such Property to the Wheaton Park  
  District 
 

Commissioner Mee moved to approve the Second Amendment to an Intergovernmental 
Agreement Between County of DuPage and Wheaton Park District for improvements to 
the Illinois Prairie Path-National Louis University Site and Lease of Such Property to the 
Wheaton Park District.  Seconded by Commissioner Morrill.  
 
President Kelly explained to the board that the reason we were extending this lease is that 
Clocktower Commons needs repairs and we want to make sure that we will have the 
property for a long time if we are going to invest money into it.  
 
Motion passed by roll call vote.  

 Ayes:  Hodgkinson, Mee, Morrill, VanderSchaaf, Kelly 
 Nays:  None 
 Absent: Luetkehans, Schobel 

 
 
 
 
 



Page 8 
 

13. Approval to Make a Grant Application to DuPage County for a Water Quality 
Improvement Project – Rathje Park 

 Commissioner Mee moved to approve staff to make a grant application to DuPage 
 County for a Water Quality Improvement Project for Rathje Park.  Seconded by 
 Commissioner Hodgkinson    
 
 No discussion. 
 
 Motion passed by voice vote.  

 
 

14. Final Approval – Naming the Jerry “Champion” Fajkus Soccer Field   
Commissioner Morrill moved to approve naming the Jerry “Champion” Fajkus Soccer 
Field at the indoor synthetic turf gym at the Central Athletic Center.  Seconded by 
Commissioner Hodgkinson.  
 
Motion passed by roll call vote.  

 Ayes:  Hodgkinson, Mee, Morrill, VanderSchaaf, Kelly 
 Nays:  None 
 Absent: Luetkehans, Schobel 

 
 
15. Final  Approval – Naming the Ron Elenbass Field 

Commissioner Morrill moved to approve Naming the Ron Elenbass Field at Atten Park 
Field number 17.  Seconded by Commissioner Mee.   
 
The board thanked Ron for his 50 years of service to the district.  After receiving a 
standing ovation from the board and staff Ron expressed his gratitude for the naming of 
the field; and receiving the volunteer award from IAPD.   
 
Motion passed by roll call vote.  

 Ayes:  Hodgkinson, Mee, Morrill, VanderSchaaf, Kelly 
 Nays:  None 
 Absent: Luetkehans, Schobel 
 
16. Approval of Proposed Investment Policy Amendments  - Discussion Item 

   
 President Kelly stated that he wished to have a discussion on this topic during a 
subcommittee meeting which was scheduled for Dec 3 at 7pm.  This topic, as well as, 
item 17 below is up for dialogue due to the IMET USDA fraud that has been in the 
newspapers lately.  The district had invested with IMET and due to the fraud currently 
has $433,000 in dollars frozen pending the resolution of the matter in court.    

 
17. Appointment of Investment Advisors - Discussion Item 
 Great Lakes Advisor Bill Gregg gave a presentation on what the Wheaton Park District 
 could expect from Great Lakes if we should hire them. They would set up an account just 
 for the District, and buy securities that are 100% transparent not only to the District but to 
 the tax payers as well.  They do not do anything with repo’s because the treasury rates are 



Page 9 
 

 low therefore the repo market is dead. If the repo market comes back he would talk to the 
 District further.  Their investments would include the following: 
 • CD’s below the $250,000 FDIC limit.  They buy CD’s on platforms in   
             denominations of $10,000, $20,000 etc.   
 • Treasuries and Agency’s to give liquidity for debt services and operating needs.   
 • Agency mortgages (Fannie and Freddie) 
 • Short municipals, rated in the top 4 highest quality ratings.  They usually don’t go 
 out more than one and a half years. 
 They would want to target the Barclay’s Government 1-3 year Index. 
 They will invest in only what the district is comfortable with. 
 They provide a deep bench to analyze this portfolio, and will attend quarterly board 
 meetings to explain how our portfolio is performing.   
 
 Commissioner VanderSchaaf stated that the park district did everything they were 
 supposed to do by investing in government backed investments in IMET.  It was out of 
 our control that fraud occurred at IMET.  President Kelly advised the board that he wants 
 to hold a Finance Subcommittee meeting to have a full discussion about this on 
 Wednesday December 3rd at 7:00 p.m. at the Community Center.   
 
 

 REPORTS FROM STAFF 
Director of Planning Sperl described documents that were provided to the county as a 
part of their watershed planning efforts. These were requested by the DuPage County 
stormwater department as they develop and amend plans for the Winfield and 
Springbrook creeks. Inclusion of any potential park projects that are related to water can 
be benefitted in permitting and/or potential grant funding. The park district is not 
committed to doing any of these projects by including them in the plan. In order to 
proceed with any of the projects, they would need to be included in future park budgets. 

 
Commissioner Morrill thanked staff for the aquatics report.  Commissioner Mee asked if 
the increased payroll costs were worth opening 30 minutes earlier.  Superintendent of 
Special Facilities Dan Novak stated it was.  Commissioner Mee commended the zoo on 
increased revenue and earning $6,400 from the carnival.  Commissioner Mee 
commended Arrowhead on earning The Knots Magazine Best Wedding Award.  Director 
of Food and Beverage Steve Glass stated this was the fifth year we’ve won it.   

 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
At 8:35 p.m., Commissioner Morrill moved to adjourn the meeting.  Commissioner Mee 
seconded.  Motion passed by voice vote. 
 



Finance Subcommittee Meeting 
Wheaton Park District Board of Commissioners 

Wednesday December 3, 2014 
Community Center 

1777 S. Blanchard Street 
 

CALL TO ORDER –President Kelly called the Finance Subcommittee meeting to order at 7:00 p.m.  
Commissioners  Luetkehans, Hodgkinson, Morrill  and VanderSchaaf were present. 

Commissioner Mee arrived at 7:07 p.m. 

Commissioners Luetkehans, Schobel was absent. 

In attendance: Executive Director Benard, Executive Assistant Siciliano, Finance Director Trainor, HR 
Manager Diane Hirschberg. 

 

DISCUSSION ITEMS 

1. Review of Current Investment Options 
 President Kelly stated that staff transferred the $433,000 that was in IMET to Illinois Funds the 
 day after the November board meeting.   He told the board that they need to decide if we want 
 to keep the money in a safe investment like Illinois Funds and receive a lower return, or invest in 
 something more aggressive with possible higher returns.  Commissioners Morrill, VanderSchaaf 
 and President Kelly were more comfortable with keeping the money in Illinois Funds.  
 Commissioner Hodgkinson and Mee thought we should investigate more aggressive options.  
 Commissioner Luetkehans stated that the money should stay in Illinois Funds until the board 
 directs staff to do otherwise. 
 
 Commissioner Luetkehans asked Finance Director Trainor to make a list of investments that are 
 allowed. 

 After much discussion it was decided by the board for staff to do an RFI for Investment 
 Brokerage Services; So that the board can make a better informed decision on what to do with 
 the money long term. 

 Commissioner VanderSchaaf asked Finance Director Trainor if we ever compared the yield in 
 IMET to what we had in CD’s.  Trainor stated she has never done that.  

2. Investment Policy Amendments 
No discussion  

3. Review of New Investment Options  
No discussion 

4. Review of Recommended Additional Full Time Positions for 2015  
 Benard distributed a follow up memo that he and President Kelly had worked on that day. 

Kelly stated that as a result of keeping part time under 30 hours some departments have been 
impacted worse than others.  The board questioned why the district didn’t save any money and 
why some departments cut their staff hours and others increased them.  Commissioner 
Luetkehans stated that all the department’s hours need to be watched.  President Kelly asked staff 



to provide a report from all the departments that increased their  hours explaining why their 
hours increased.  They would also like to see what programming for the Rec department was like 
in this last year.  

 
There was discussion on ACA related needs for additional full time staff and existing operational 
needs (full time) that were accelerated due to the ACA.  There was consensus that the Zoo and 
Parks and Cooks position needs were certainly ACA related. 

 
The board asked staff to provide more information on each of the positions; they asked Human 
Resources Manager Hirschberg to provide an analysis on each position, except for the HR 
administrative position.  The board asked that staff prioritize the positions, and that the positions 
will be addressed at regular board meetings as follows (Benard asked to let the Board know if 
altering the schedule becomes necessary): 

 January:  Arrowhead 5 positions 
 February:  Park Services 3 positions 
 March:  PPFC position, 2 Zoo positions, HR Assistant and Marketing and Events  
 
 President Kelly instructed Executive Director Benard to lift the mandate on the zoo’s hours 
 during the Christmas tree sales, to relieve the zoo staff. 
 

5. Final 2015 budget review 
 President Kelly asked staff to remove the double up figures for staff wages out of the budget 
 and keep only $300,000 in there for the difference between the jobs that might change from 
 part time to full time.  
 
 Commissioner Luetkehans noticed that a few changes were not made in the capital budget that 
 was discussed at the budget workshop on October 4th; including the Central Athletic Center 
 improvements and for the playgrounds.  They asked Finance Director Trainor to put $500,000 
 into the budget for the possible grant or remove the expenses for these projects at Central.  
 They would just like the budget to be consistent.   

 Commissioner VanderSchaaf stated that we need to come back to the discussion on healthcare 
 fees to employees in 2016.  The board and staff agreed to review the matter in 2015. 

Executive Director Benard stated that the board will need to notify PDRMA by July 1, 2015 if we 
want to  withdraw from them in 2016.  Commissioner Luetkehans asked staff to provide a report 
on other quotes from other insurance companies and to find out if we can send a withdrawal 
notice and then rescind it.    
 
Detail reports were requested on playground replacement scheduling,  the old hubble project and 
explanations for increases in part time staff hours from 2013 to 2014. 

 

 At 8:23 pm. Commissioner Mee moved to adjourn the Finance Subcommittee Meeting.  
 Seconded by Commissioner Morrill Motion passed by voice vote. 







                               
                                     

TO:  Board of Commissioners 
 
FROM: Rob Sperl, Director of Planning 
 
THROUGH: Michael Benard, Executive Director 
 
RE: Playground Replacement Schedule 
 
DATE:  December 5, 2014 
 
 
Below is a summary of our anticipated playground replacement schedule. Please note that there 
are some deviations from the current budget projections that will need to be corrected during the 
next budget cycle. This is fairly accurate for the next five of years. However, we annually assess 
how individual playgrounds are holding up and make adjustments as necessary. As can be noted, 
we have been able to extend the life of some playgrounds beyond the typical 17 year anticipated 
life. Beyond 2020, the seventeen year anticipated life cycle is used as the basis for replacement. 
 

Park Year Installed Year to Replace Life Span

Central 1997 0 1 -1997

Hull 1996 0 1 -1996

Brighton 1997 2015 18

Hoffman 1999 2016 17

Scottdale 1998 2016 18

Presidents 1995 2016 2 21

Kelly 1999 2017 18

Hawthorne Junction 1998 2017 19

Prairie Path 1996 2018 22

Hillside 2001 2019 18

Toohey 2003 2020 17

Graf 2005 2022 17

Community Center 2005 2022 17

W.W. Stevens 2006 2023 17

Seven Gables 2008 2025 17

Triangle 2008 2025 17

Atten 2009 2026 17

Sunnyside 2009 2026 17

Briar Knoll 2009 2026 17

Northside 2010 2027 17

Briar Patch 2011 2028 17

CL Herrick 2012 2029 17

Rathje 2013 2030 17

Danada South 2014 2031 17

1- Undetermined replacement

2- Pending park master plan

WPD Playground Replacement  Schedule

 



                               
                                     

TO:  Board of Commissioners 
FROM: Andy Bendy, Director of Special Facilities  
  Bruce Stoller, Director of Golf  
THROUGH: Mike Benard, Executive Director    
RE: Approval of Purchases over $10,000 
DATE:  December 1, 2014  
 
 
SUMMARY:  
Items are purchased for resale in the pro shop throughout the year.  Rarely are purchases made in excess of 
$10,000 from any one vendor, but there are two companies where annual purchases always exceed this 
spending threshold and pre-season orders often do as the pro shop is stocked for the start of the season.  These 
companies are Titleist and Callaway.  Titleist is the number one golf ball manufacturer in the world with the 
pre-season order routinely falling in the $10,000 - $12,000 range.  Callaway is used for a wide variety of items 
including, golf balls, clubs, bags and clothing.  The pre-season order is routinely near $10,000.        
 
There are many other vendors that are used as well but none of these have exceeded the $10,000 level of 
purchases in a number of years. 
 
 
PREVIOUS COMMITTEE/BOARD ACTION:   
                     
 

REVENUE OR FUNDING IMPLICATIONS: 
 

Items are purchased from three different inventory accounts depending on the type of product and are then sold 
at a profit during the season in the pro shop.  Profit margins vary by category but range from about 22% on golf 
balls to about 45% on clothing items with clubs and bags falling somewhere in the middle. 
 
 

STAKEHOLDER PROCESS: 
 
 

LEGAL REVIEW: 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
ALTERNATIVES: 
Items can be purchased from other vendors to keep all levels under $10,000 per vendor but this would not allow 
for maximum sales or profits.  
  
RECOMMENDATION:  
Staff requests the Board of Commissioners’ approval for the purchase of over $10,000 from Titleist and 
Callaway during the pre-order period of December 2014 – February 2015 in order to stock the pro shop with 
merchandise for the 2015 season.   
 



                               
                                     

TO:  Board of Commissioners 
 
FROM: Andy Bendy, Director of Special Facilities  
 
THROUGH: Mike Benard, Executive Director 
    
RE: Approval of Purchases over $10,000 
 
DATE:  December 1, 2014  
 
 
SUMMARY:  
Beverage carts are used on the golf course to provide refreshments to golfers while they are enjoying their 
round of golf.  There are currently three such carts in the fleet at Arrowhead.  One was purchased in 1989, 
one in 2002 and one in 2007.  Most days in the summer will see two carts on the course for most of the 
day with three carts in use on extremely busy days and for some golf outings.  Having the third unit also 
allows for no interruption of service when a cart breaks down.   
 
Staff will be attending the PGA Merchandise Show during the second half of January where all major 
manufacturers of beverage carts will be present.  It is not unusual for companies to offer discounted 
“show specials” during this three day event and we would like the ability to purchase a unit if a deal can 
be made that fits within the budget and offers a deep discount.  Since all manufacturers will be in 
attendance, three written estimates will be obtained before making the decision.    
 
PREVIOUS COMMITTEE/BOARD ACTION:       
                     
 

REVENUE OR FUNDING IMPLICATIONS: 
 

$15,000 has been budgeted in 2015 for the replacement of one beverage cart and will come from the Food 
and Beverage portion of the Arrowhead budget.   
 

STAKEHOLDER PROCESS: 
 
 

LEGAL REVIEW: 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
ALTERNATIVES: 
The more traditional method of receiving three quotes and presenting them to the Board of 
Commissioners for approval will be followed if approval is not given for this less orthodox alternative. 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
Staff requests the Board of Commissioners’ approval for the purchase of a beverage cart in an amount not 
to exceed $15,000 if such a purchase can be made at a discounted rate at the PGA Merchandise Show and 
three written quotes can be obtained prior to the purchase. 
 











                               
                                     

TO:  Board of Commissioners 
 
FROM: Rob Sperl, Director of Planning 
 
THROUGH: Michael Benard, Executive Director 
 
RE: 2014 Asphalt Paving at Arrowhead Golf Club- Change Order 1 
 
DATE:  December 5, 2014 
 
 
SUMMARY:  
Chadwick Contracting was contracted to perform asphalt patching in the parking lot and to replace a 
small section of cart path on the west course adjacent to the ponds. Manhard Consulting, Ltd 
prepared plans in the spring of 2014 that became the basis of bid.  
 
During the course of marking out the limits of work, staff identified an area in need of replacement 
that was larger than the plan indicated. After measuring the area completed and comparing it to the 
plans, staff agrees that this was above and beyond what was initially identified on the plans.  
 
In a typical situation, our bid specifications are clear that no additional work is authorized without 
prior written approval. We would also expect the contractor to layout their own work based on the 
plans. In this instance, the contractor requested assistance from staff in laying out the extents of the 
work and identified a notation in the plans indicating this would be the basis for the work. However, 
this was not identified as work outside of the scope at the time the work was being completed. 
 
President Kelly, Golf Course Superintendent Kirtland and I met with Chadwick Contracting on 
November 26 and negotiated a change order of $8,000 for the additional work. This is approximately 
$2,000 less than the contractor initially requested. 
 
PREVIOUS COMMITTEE/BOARD ACTION:                           
The board authorized a contract with Chadwick Contracting for this project on October 8, 2014. 
 
REVENUE OR FUNDING IMPLICATIONS: 
The contract costs are as follows: 
Item Cost 

Original Contract Amount $37,010.00 

CO1: Additional Asphalt Replacement (if approved) $8,000.00 

Final Contract Amount $45,010.00 

Amount spent on 7 south in separate contract $8,770.00 

Total Amount Spent in Asphalt in 2014 $53,780.00 

Amount over budget $3,780.00 
 
The amount over budget will be reduced from FY2015 for a total amount of $46,220 available for 
asphalt repair work. 



STAKEHOLDER PROCESS: 
N/A 
 
LEGAL REVIEW: 
Contract documents were provided by our legal counsel. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
N/A 
 
ALTERNATIVES: 
N/A 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
It is recommended that the Wheaton Park District Board of Commissioner’s approve a change order 
for the additional asphalt replacement from Chadwick Contracting in the amount of $8,000. 






























































































































































































































































	Consent Agenda to New Biz #2
	Agenda
	Checks approval document
	Finance Subcommitee minutes 11-3-14
	Finance SC minutes 11-17-14
	Nov 19 BAO minutes
	Nov 19 regular minutes
	Finance SC minutes 12-3-14
	Finance SC follow up OSLAD & PARC grants
	Playground replacement schedule
	purchase over $10k proshop
	purchase over $10k beverage cart
	IAPD credentials certificate
	Unfinished Biz #1ashphalt change order AGC 
	Unfinished #2 Gateway Gardens
	New Biz #1 ORD 2014-10 BAO
	New Biz #2 ORD 2014-11 Tax Levy

	New 3  to Dept reports
	New Biz #3 ORD 2014-12 annual abatement
	New Biz #4 Pepsi agreement
	New Biz #5 Commissioner attendance IPRA/IAPD
	Department reports 

	Annual reports
	Special Event Annual report
	Summer Camp annual report




